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COMPANY PROFILE

China Shipping Development Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a major
shipping company having its business across the coastal region of the PRC and internationally. The main business
scope of the Group includes coastal, ocean and Yangtze River cargo transportation, ship leasing, cargo forwarding and
cargo transportation agency. As at 31 December 2011, the Group owned assets totaling of approximately RMB51.589
billion, of which there are shareholders’ funds of approximately RMB23.639 billion, and a fleet of 189 vessels with an
aggregate deadweight of approximately 13.245 million tons. The Group now operates one of the largest fleets of oil
tankers and dry bulk cargo carriers in the Far East.
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Turnover
Profit before tax

Profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company

Total assets
Minority interests and total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Net assets value per share
Earning per share

Dividend per share

2011
RMB’000

12,157,458

1,225,051

1,047,315
51,588,814

27,949,997

23,638,817
RMB

6.943
0.3076

0.100

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

2010
RMB’000

11,283,594

2,171,408

1,716,522
40,710,175

18,131,630

22,578,545
RMB

6.632
0.5042

0.170
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2009
RMB’000

8,729,969

1,342,337

1,064,794
33,929,549

12,534,976

21,394,573
RMB

6.284
0.3128

0.100

CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

2008
RMB’000

17,214,283

6,432,685

5,373,010
30,028,594

8,574,574

21,454,020
RMB

6.302
1.5864

0.300

2007
RMB’000

12,394,739

5,328,035

4,546,383
23,707,443

7,635,928

16,171,515
RMB

4.862
1.3669

0.500
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS OF THE INTERNATIONAL AND DOMESTIC SHIPPING MARKET DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group is principally engaged in the cargo shipping business. Cargo shipping mainly consists of the shipment of
oil and dry bulk cargoes (primarily coal and iron ore), both domestically along the coastal regions of the PRC and
internationally. At present, the Group is also developing Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG”) transportation business.

In 2011, against the background of slowing global economic growth and international volatile financial markets, fuel
price (which was affected by a number of factors) continued to rise. Faced with pressures from freight rate reduction
and rising cost at the same time, international shipping industry activities fell significantly again, and losses were
reported for the industry.

As for the dry bulk cargo shipping market, global demand for shipping major bulk cargoes include iron ore, coal and
grain showed a slowdown in growth. International dry bulk cargo shipping market fluctuated at low levels in 2011
due to the severe supply and demand imbalance. The Baltic Dry Bulk Freight Rate Index (the “BDI”) reached its
historical low since 2004 and averaged daily in 2011 at 1,549 points, down 43.8% compared with the same period
last year.

The overall domestic coastal bulk shipping market was in a downturn during the year ended 31 December 2011
(“Reporting Period”). The coastal dry bulk freight index (“CBFI”) averaged daily in 2011 at 1,368 points, down 6.3%
compared with the same period in 2010.

In 2011, imbalance between the supply of and demand for shipping capacity in oil tanker shipping market was
further exacerbated. Freight rate remained low and the whole international oil tanker operations recorded loss. In
2011, the Baltic Dirty Oil Tanker Freight Rate Index (“BDTI”) averaged daily at 782 points, representing a decrease
of 12.7% compared with the same period in 2010. The World Scale Index (“WSI”) for shipping routes from the
Middle East to Japan, being one of the freight rate indicators for very large crude oil carriers (“VLCC”) in 2011
averaged daily at 53 points, representing a decrease of 26.0% compared with the same period in 2010. The
average daily revenue for VLCC was USD8,525, a decrease of 73.4% compared with the same period in 2010.

In 2011, the domestic economy grew and developed steadily at a relatively fast speed, and the overall domestic
coastal oil shipment market remained stable. However, given the sustained downturn of the international oil shipping
market and the macro control policy adopted by the central government of China, the competition in domestic oil
transportation market intensified. Facing market changes, the Group persisted in the strategy of cooperation with
large oil companies to vigorously expand new demand sources. The Group still occupied a market share of over
60% in 2011 and maintained its leading position in the domestic coastal oil shipping market.

CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED  Annual Report 2011



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

Despite the complex and volatile market environment in 2011, the Group firmly focused on its core business of
domestic coastal coal shipping and oil shipping business, continued to adhere to its policy of “reinforcing coastal
business and developing clean transportation”, and put more effort into market expansion. The Group also enhanced
its association and cooperation with customers and implemented refined management. As a result, the Group’s
operations and safety management worked smoothly, maintaining an overall sound and steady development and
generating greater profit than the average level in the shipping industry.

During the Reporting Period, the shipping volume achieved by the Group was approximately 345.9 billion tonne-
nautical miles, and the total revenue derived from shipment was approximately RMB12.157 billion, representing an
increase of 28.2% and 7.74% as compared with those of the same period in 2010 respectively. The operating costs
were approximately RMB10.637 billion, representing an increase of 19.1% as compared with that of the same
period in 2010. Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately RMB1.047 billion,
representing a decrease of 38.99% as compared with that of the same period in 2010. Basic earnings per share
was approximately RMBO0.3076.

Principal Operations by Products Transported

Increase/

Increase/ Increase in (decrease)

(decrease) operating in gross

Gross in revenue costs profit margin

Industry or Operating profit as compared ascompared ascompared
Product Description Revenue costs margin with 2010 with 2010 with 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Coal shipments 3,887,438 2,980,416 23.3% 10.8% 11.4% -0.5%
Iron ore shipments 1,386,126 1,249,095 9.9% 80.9% 77.9% 1.6%
Other dry bulk shipments 653,700 639,948 21% -28.2% 5.5% -31.3%
Oil shipments 6,230,194 5,767,229 7.4% 2.2% 16.6% -11.4%
Total 12,157,458 10,636,688 12.5% 7.7% 19.1% -8.3%

Annual Report 2011 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

Principal Operations by Geographical Regions

Increase

in revenue

as compared

Regions Revenue with 2010
(RMB’000) (%)

Domestic shipment 7,391,558 2.3%
International shipment 4,765,900 17.4%

(1) Shipping business - Dry bulk shipments

In 2011, being confronted with sluggish market demand and increasingly intense competition, the Group made
great efforts in market expansion, fleet optimization and staff training to achieve balanced growth in its three
major segments, being coastal, offshore and joint ventures. In 2011, in spite of the challenging overall market
conditions, the Group was able to deliver profit in both domestic and international dry bulk shipments, and
successfully distinguished itself in the domestic and global dry bulk markets.

With respect to coastal shipping, the Group focused on thermal coal contracts of affreightment (“COA contracts”)
and actively expanded its customer base. In 2011, the Group has completed domestic trade bulk shipment
volume of 61.03 million tons through COA contracts, with average benchmark freight rate increased slightly
from 2010, laying an important foundation for the operational efficiency of the Group.

With respect to offshore shipment, with the Group’s very large ore carrier (“WVLOC”) vessels being put into
operation successively, the Group’s iron ore shipping amount increased gradually. In 2011, the Group completed
a total freight volume of 23.41 million tons of iron ores, achieving revenue from shipping operations of RMB1,386
million, representing an increase of 80.9% as compared with the same period of 2010. This became a growth
highlight of the Group’s foreign trade shipping operations in 2011.

With respect to joint venture partnership, the Group continued to implement its strategies of cooperation with
major customers and further expanded its association and cooperation coverage, which has consolidated the
Group’s control over the coastal thermal coal shipping market. In 2011, the market share of the Group (including
its associated companies) in domestic coal shipping market reached 26%, representing an increase of 3
percentage points over the same period last year.

In 2011, the Group achieved a shipping volume of approximately 158.6 billion tonne-nautical miles of dry bulk
cargo, and derived revenue of approximately RMB5.927 billion, representing increases of 45.5% and 14.3% as
compared with those of the same period in 2010 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(1) Shipping business - Dry bulk shipments (Continued)

An analysis of the transportation volume and revenue in terms of product types is as follows:

Transportation volume by types

Domestic Shipment

Coal

Iron ore

Other dry bulk
International Shipment

Coal
Iron ore
Other dry bulk

Total

Revenue by shipments types

Domestic Shipment

Coal

Iron ore

Other dry bulk
International Shipment
Coal

Iron ore

Other dry bulk

Total

In 2011
(billion tonne

nautical miles)

In 2010
(billion tonne
nautical miles)

62.8 59.0
52.1 50.5

6.7 5.7

4.0 2.8

95.8 50.0

14.1 4.4

49.3 17.4

32.4 28.2

158.6 109.0

In 2011 In 2010

(RMB million)  (RMB million)
3,995 3,777

3,458 3,296

316 300

221 181

1,932 1,408

429 213

1,070 465

433 730

5,927 5,185

Increase in
volume as
compared

with 2010
(%)

6.4%

3.2%
17.5%
42.9%
91.6%

220.5%
183.3%
14.9%

45.5%

Increase/
(decrease)
in revenue

as compared

with 2010

(%)

5.8%

4.9%
5.3%
22.1%
37.2%

101.4%
130.1%
-40.7%

14.3%

Note: Other bulk cargoes include metal ore, non-metallic ore, steel, cement, timber, grain, fertilizer and so on except for coal

and iron ore.

Annual Report 2011

CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(2) Shipping business — Oil shipments

In 2011, the international oil transportation market remained depressed and the competition in domestic oil
transportation market intensified. Against such a backdrop, the Group adhered to its “large ships, big clients
and great co-operation” strategy and focused on the execution and enforcement of COA contracts and, therefore,
effectively securing a steady supply on a long term basis.

In respect of domestic oil shipments, the Group strengthened communication with competent government
authority and major customers. Apart from stabilizing the major customer base, the Group also endeavored to
explore and nurture potential and small to medium size clients to broaden its source of profit growth.

In the second half of 2011, affected by a reduction in offshore oil production in Bohai Bay due to the oil spill
accident at Penglai 19-3 oilfield, the Group’s revenue from offshore oil shipments decreased by approximately
RMB195 million, and its operating profit reduced by approximately RMB121 million.

In 2011, the Group achieved a shipping volume of approximately 187.3 billion tonne-nautical miles of oil shipment
and the revenue achieved was approximately RMB6.230 billion, representing an increase of 16.6% and 2.1%
as compared with that of the same period in 2010 respectively. An analysis of the transportation volume and
revenue in terms of product types is as follow:

Transportation volume and revenue in terms of products types

8

Increase/

(decrease)

in volume

In 2011 In 2010 as compared

(billion tonne (billion tonne with 2010

nautical miles)  nautical miles) (%)

Domestic Shipment 25.5 26.8 -4.9%
Crude oil 18.1 20.7 -12.6%
Refined oil 7.4 6.1 21.3%
International Shipment 161.8 133.9 20.8%
Crude oil 136.6 105.3 29.7%
Refined oil 25.2 28.6 -11.9%
Total 187.3 160.7 16.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

@

3)

Shipping business — Oil shipments (Continued)

Revenue by product types

Increase/

(decrease)

in revenue

as compared

In 2011 In 2010 with 2010

(RMB million) (RMB million) (%)

Domestic Shipment 3,396 3,446 -1.5%
Crude oll 2,771 2,826 -1.9%
Refined oil 625 620 0.8%
International Shipment 2,834 2,653 6.8%
Crude oll 1,773 1,565 13.3%
Refined oil 1,061 1,088 -2.5%
Total 6,230 6,099 21%

Progress made in LNG shipments

In 2011, the Group achieved a breakthrough in the development of LNG projects. In July 2011, the Group and
Mitsui OSK Lines reached a consensus on and signed an agreement for jointly establishing four single-vessel
companies and building four LNG vessels for LNG shipments. All the four vessels will be delivered for use from
2015 to 2016, and are expected to bring stable investment returns for the Group. LNG projects will become the
new growth drivers for the future development of the Group.

To further strengthen the cooperation with China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation in LNG shipping, the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, China Shipping Group Liquefied Natural Gas Investment Company Limited
entered into a joint venture agreement with Kantons Investment, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sinopec Kantons
in December 2011, by which the parties agreed to set up a jointly-controlled entity in Hong Kong and to make
further investment into the jointly-controlled entity on a pro rata basis by way of equity investments, shareholders’
loans, bank financing or otherwise, in order to participate in the investment on building and the management of
LNG vessels with a joint effort.

Annual Report 2011 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(4) Costs analysis

In 2011, international oil price continued to rise and fluctuated at high levels. Under the impact of global inflation,
various kinds of costs increased at different extent, and posed challenges to the Group on cost control and
operation management. In 2011, the Group continued to focus on “increasing revenue, reducing expenses,
controlling costs and improving efficiency”, further refined management, steadily carried out comprehensive
budget management and reinforced control on operating costs. Through initiatives taken in various aspects,
the Group effectively controlled major transportation costs such as fuel cost, port charges and repair expenses.

The total operating costs incurred in 2011 was approximately RMB10.637 billion, an increase of 19.1% as
compared with 2010. The composition of the main operating costs is as follows:

Composition

Increase/ Ratio

Iltem In 2011 In 2010 (decrease) in 2011
(RMB million) (RMB million) (%) (%)

Fuel cost 5,016 3,845 30.5% 471%
Port cost 861 818 5.3% 8.1%
Labor cost 1,453 1,314 10.6% 13.7%
Lubricants expenses 132 232 -43.1% 1.2%
Depreciation 1,751 1,364 28.4% 16.5%
Insurance expenses 242 224 8.0% 2.3%
Repair expenses 359 526 -31.7% 3.4%
Charter cost 584 352 66.0% 5.5%
Others 239 256 -7% 2.2%

Total 10,637 8,931 19.1% 100.0%

The fuel cost incurred by the Group in 2011 was approximately RMB5,016 million, an increase of 30.5% as
compared with 2010, representing 47.1% of the total operating cost. Such change was due to the significant
increase of international oil prices as compared with 2010. The average price of Singapore 380CST fuel for
2011 increased to USD648 per ton, up 39.4% as compared with the same period in 2010. In 2011, the Group
further enhanced its fuel saving, and in light of the total shipping turnover volume increase of 28.2%, the total
fuel consumption of the Group amounted to 1.13 million tons, representing an increase of 16.6% as compared
with the same period in 2010. The fuel consumption per thousand nautical miles was 3.27 kg, representing a
decrease of 9.1% as compared with that of the same period in 2010.

10 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED  Annual Report 2011



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

4)

(5)

Costs analysis (Continued)

The Group’s depreciation expenses incurred in 2011 amounted to approximately RMB1,751 million, an increase
of 28.4% as compared with that of the same period in 2010, representing 16.5% of the total operating costs.
Such change was due to the daily average capacity increase of 17.4% as a result of the delivery of 3 new
tankers and 20 new bulk vessels.

The charter cost incurred by the Group in 2011 was approximately RMB584 million, representing an increase
of approximately 66.0% as compared with the same period in 2010, accounting for 5.5% of the total operating
cost. The main reason for such change was that the Group chartered in 2 VLCCs with a capacity of 298,000
deadweight tonnes each in 2011.

Operating results of the jointly-controlled entities

In 2011, the Group has recognised its profits in its jointly-controlled shipping entities of approximately RMB343
million, representing an increase of 66.04% as compared with that of the same period in 2010. The main
reason for such change was due to the fleet expansion and the remarkable increase in the operating results
achieved by the 5 jointly-controlled shipping entities of the Group. In 2011, the 5 jointly-controlled shipping
entities achieved a shipping volume of 98.2 billion tonne-nautical miles, an increase of 61.9% as compared
with the same period in 2010. The turnover achieved by the 5 jointly-controlled shipping entities in 2011 was
approximately RMB8.067 billion, with a net profit of approximately RMB702 million, representing an increase
of 52.1% and 61.6% as compared with the same period in 2010 respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the 5 jointly-controlled shipping entities owned 50 bulk vessels with a total capacity
of 2,510,000 deadweight tonnes and 46 vessels under construction with the capacity of 2,200,000 deadweight
tonnes.

Annual Report 2011 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(5) Operating results of the jointly-controlled entities (Continued)

The operating results achieved by the 5 jointly-controlled shipping entities in 2011 are as follows:

Interest held 2011 2011
by the Shipping Operating 2011
Company name Company volume revenue Net profit
(billion tonne
nautical miles) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
Shenhua Zhonghai Marine
Co., Limited 49% 55.8 5,098,504 498,138
Shanghai Times Shipping
Co., Limited 50% 32.3 2,284,729 152,072
Shanghai Friendship Marine
Co., Limited 50% 1.6 163,648 14,989
Huahai Petrol Transportation &
Trading Co., Limited 50% 1.6 150,860 6,726
Guangzhou Development
Shipping Co., Limited 50% 6.9 369,565 30,472

In 2011, the net profit achieved by China Shipping Finance Co., Limited (“CS Finance”), a non-shipping jointly-
controlled entity, with 25% interest held by the Company, was RMB 101,129,000.

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

(1) Net cash inflow

The net cash inflow from operating activities of the Group decreased from approximately RMB2,754,300,000
for the year ended 31 December 2010 to approximately RMB1,421,967,000 for the year ended 31 December
2011, representing a decrease of approximately 48.37%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(2) Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had capital commitments as at 31 December 2011, of which RMB6,514,365,000
(2010: RMB3,478,709,000) from the Group and RMB2,520,067,000 (2010: RMB793,814,000) from the Company
will be due within one year.

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Authorized and contracted for:

Construction and purchases

of vessels (Note 1) 11,299,626 20,436,403 4,351,747 9,214,159
Equity Investments (Note 2) 1,486,735 2,111,649 1,486,735 2,111,649
12,786,361 22,548,052 5,838,482 11,325,808

In addition to the above, the Group’s share of the capital commitments of its associate, which are contracted for
but not provided amounted to RMB1,589,308,000 (2010:RMBNil). The Group’s share of the capital commitments
of its jointly-controlled entity, which are contracted for but not provided amounted to RMB2,176,696,000 (2010:
RMB913,786,000) which are authorised but not contracted for amounted to RMB2,100,538,000 (2010:
RMB3,904,340,000).

Note 1:  According to the construction or purchase agreements entered into by the Group in 2007 to 2011, these capital
commitments will fall due as from 2012 to 2013 respectively.

Note 2:  Included in capital commitments in respect of equity investments is the commitment to invest in a jointly-controlled
entity, Shenhua Zhonghai Marine Co., Limited, of RMB1,470,668,000 (2010: RMB2,058,668,000).

Annual Report 2011 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(3) Capital structure

The Group’s and Company’s net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

Total borrowings

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity
Debt to equity ratio

Company

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
14,706,498 9,318,606
(1,795,817) (402,137)
12,910,681 8,916,469
21,763,769 20,738,869
59% 43%

As at 31 December 2011, the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and net debts (as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, notes, other loan and convertible bonds) less cash and
cash equivalents) amounted to approximately RMB24,341,608,000 and approximately RMB21,577,478,000
respectively. The debt-to-equity ratio was 88.64% (31 December 2010: 60.26%).

CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED  Annual Report 2011



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(4) Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

(a) The Group’s notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows:

Annual Effective

interest
(%)
Current liabilities
(i) Bankloans
Secured 10% discount to
the People’s Bank
of China (“PBC")

Benchmark interest rate,
Libor + 0.38% to 1.60%

Unsecured Libor + 0.35% to
4.00%, 5.904%

(i) Notes
Unsecured 4.18%
(i) Other borrowings

Unsecured 10% discount to the PBC
Benchmark interest rate,
5.904% t0 6.56%

Notes, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - current portion

Maturity

2012

2012

2012

2012

Annual Report 2011

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
922,423 561,041 35,614 35,539
686,993 662,809 — 231,794
1,609,416 1,223,850 35,614 267,333
1,998,038 — 1,998,038 -
966,000 1,200,000 941,000 1,200,000
4,573,454 2,423,850 2,974,652 1,467,333

CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(4) Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (Continued)

(a) The Group’s notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: (Continued)

Non-current liabilities
(i) Bankloans

Secured

Unsecured

(i) Notes
Unsecured
(iii) Other borrowings

Unsecured

Annual Effective

interest Maturity
(%)

10% discount to the PBC

Benchmark interest rate,

Libor + 0.38% t0 1.60%  2013-2022
Libor+ 1.35%t01.70%  2013-2019
3.90% 2014
10% discount to the PBC

Benchmark interest rate,

4.86% t0 6.51% 2013-2018

Notes, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - Non-current portion

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
7,185,601 4,590,795 284,160 319,849
1,231,826 — — —
8,417,427 4,590,795 284,160 319,849
2,995,537 4,989,873 2,995,537 4,989,873
5,341,551 2,541,551 5,341,551 2,541,551
16,754,515 12,122,219 8,621,248 7,851,273

The Group’s bank loans are secured by pledges or mortgages of the Group’s 22 vessels (2010: 15 vessels)

and another 9 vessels under construction (2010: 2 vessels under construction) with total net carrying value

of RMB13,044,293,000 (2010: RMB7,585,649,000) as at 31 December 2011.

The Company’s bank loans are secured by pledges or mortgages of the Company’s 2 vessels (2010: 2
vessels) with total net carrying value of RMB428,817,000 (2010: RMB 447,353,000) as at 31 December

2011.

The carrying value of the Group’s and the Company’s notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

approximate their fair values.

Except for secured bank loans of RMB7,788,252,000 (2010: RMB4,796,448,000) and unsecured bank
loans of RMB1,861,916,000 (2010: RMB649,010,000) which are denominated in USD, all borrowings are
denominated in RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(4) Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (Continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings were repayable

as follows:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Analysed into:
(i) Bankloans:
Within one year
or on demand 1,609,416 1,223,850 35,614 267,333
In the second year 1,389,529 612,084 35,614 35,539
In the third to fifth year,
inclusive 3,028,983 1,866,396 106,842 106,617
Over five years 3,998,915 2,112,315 141,704 177,693
10,026,843 5,814,645 319,774 587,182
(i) Notes:
Within one year or
on demand 1,998,038 — 1,998,038 —
In the second year — 1,995,946 — 1,995,946
In the third to fifth year,
inclusive 2,995,537 2,993,927 2,995,537 2,993,927
4,993,575 4,989,873 4,993,575 4,989,873
(iii) Other borrowings:
Within one year or
on demand 966,000 1,200,000 941,000 1,200,000
In the second year 1,500,000 200,000 1,500,000 200,000
In the third to fifth year,
inclusive 841,551 2,341,551 841,551 2,341,551
Over five years 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 —
6,307,551 3,741,551 6,282,551 3,741,551
21,327,969 14,546,069 11,595,900 9,318,606

Included in other borrowings represent an amount of RMB1,607,551,000 (2010: RMB1,441,551,000) were
borrowed from CS Finance, a jointly controlled entity of the Group. As at 31 December 2011, the current
and non-current portion of this borrowing amounted to RMB566,000,000 (2010: RMB200,000,000) and
RMB1,041,551,000 (2010: RMB1,241,551,000) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(4) Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (Continued)

(o)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings were repayable
as follows: (Continued)

Included in other borrowings represent an amount of RMB4,300,000,000 (2010: RMB2,300,000,000) were
borrowed from the Company’s ultimate holding company. As at 31 December 2011, the current and non-
current portion of this borrowing amounted to RMBNil (2010: RMB1,000,000,000) and RMB4,300,000,000
(2010: RMB1,300,000,000) respectively.

Included in other borrowings represent an amount of RMB400,000,000 (2010: RMB Nil) were borrowed
from Guangzhou Marine Transport (Group) Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of the Company. As at 31 December
2011, the current portion of this borrowing amounted to RMB400,000,000 (2010: RMB Nil).

Details of the notes at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Group and Company

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

Principal amount 5,000,000 5,000,000
Notes issuance cost (14,496) (14,496)
Proceeds received 4,985,504 4,985,504
Accumulated amortisation 8,071 4,369
4,993,575 4,989,873

Notes with a principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 and RMB2,000,000,000 were issued by the Group to
investors on 3 August 2009 and 26 November 2009 respectively. The notes carried a fixed interest yield of
3.90% and 4.18% per annum respectively and were issued at a price of 100 per cent of their principal
amount, resulting in no discount on the issue. The notes bear interest from 4 August 2009 and 27 November
2009 respectively, payable annually in arrears on 4 August and 27 November of each year respectively.
The notes will mature on 3 August 2014 and 26 November 2012 respectively at their principal amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(5) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks generates interest income at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term fixed
deposits are deposited for various periods of between one day to three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and interest income shall accrue at the respective short-term fixed deposit
rates. The carrying value of the cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

Included in cash and cash equivalents represent an amount of RMB209,470,000 (2010: RMB307,451,000) of
bank balance deposited with CS Finance, a jointly-controlled entity of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RMB 2,644,443 705,513 1,602,403 315,905
uUsD 729,157 351,880 192,555 85,130
HKD 1,736 1,376 37 41
EUR 799 1,021 799 1,021
SGD 534 1,905 — —
GBP 22 33 22 33
JPY 1 7 1 7
3,376,692 1,061,735 1,795,817 402,137

(6) Risk on foreign currency

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to United States Dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) against RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2011, if USD and HKD had weakened or strengthened by 1% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year 2011 would have been RMB73,562,000 (2010:
RMB45,689,000) higher or lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated trade receivables and payables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Given the increasing significance of the Group’s international shipping business, changes in exchange rates
will have certain impact on the Group’s profitability. Therefore, the Group will further strengthen its efforts in
monitoring and studying exchange rate fluctuations and will actively implement effective measures to strive to
avoid exchange rate fluctuation risks. Firstly, the Group will strive to break even USD for its operations. Secondly,
the Group will conscientiously analyze and compare available financial instruments for averting exchange rate
risks, so as to hedge and lock in financial costs, and to effectively protect against risks caused by exchange
rate fluctuations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

3. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

(7) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in the market interest
rates as the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The Group’s exposures to changes in interest
rates are mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. To minimize its interest expenses,
the Group entered into interest rate swaps from time to time to mitigate the interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB86,097,000 (2010:
RMB53,640,000) lower/higher, the Company’s post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB21,827,000
(2010: RMB15,855,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

4. OTHERS

(1) Fleet expansion projects

In 2011, the Group has achieved further improvement in its fleet expansion.

In 2011, the total investment of the Group was approximately RMB9,495,037,000, of which approximately
RMB8,374,163,000 was paid for the purchase of fixed assets (vessels) and respective construction in progress
in cash.

In terms of fleet expansion, 3 new tankers with a total capacity of 460,000 deadweight tonnes and 20 new bulk
vessels with a total capacity of 1,990,000 deadweight tonnes have been delivered for use in 2011. In addition,
to cope with the changes in shipping market, the Group has upgraded 10 old vessels with total net assets of
approximately RMB378,080,000 in 2011, and approximately RMB81,390,000 has been paid for the
transformation of these old vessels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

4. OTHERS (Continued)

M

@

Fleet expansion projects (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group owned 189 vessels with a total capacity of 13,250,000 deadweight. The

composition of the Group’s fleet is as follows:

Number of Deadweight Average

vessels tonnes age

('000) (years)

Tankers 72 6,850 8.5
Dry bulk vessels 117 6,400 15.7
Total 189 13,250 12.8

Material asset disposals

In 2011, the Group disposed of 10 old bulk vessels of an aggregate 280,000 deadweight tonnes. The details of

such disposals are as follows:

Assets sold

Hai Zhou
Liu Zhou
Hua Kai
Hua Ge
Cang Zhou
Zi Yunshan
Jin Panling
Hong Qi 123
Hong Qi 120
Hong Qi 124

Total

Profit arising

Price of from disposal
Disposal of assets
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
23,633 21,069
24,688 21,890
37,536 33,684
24,164 22,624
38,627 22,951
20,418 9,054
17,449 7,492
16,664 6,678
16,563 6,496
16,676 6,379
236,418 158,317

Annual Report 2011

Connected
transaction
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No
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Market price
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

5. OUTLOOK AND HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2012

M

@

3)

Prediction and analysis of international and domestic shipping market

In 2012, the continual of complicated international political economy added uncertainties to global economic
recovery. While growth in world trade will remain low, there will be a slight increase in the import and export
trade of China. The situation of excessive shipping capacity supply in the international shipping market is
unlikely to have fundamental improvement in the short-term, and the world’s oil transportation and dry bulk
shipping markets are expected to fluctuate at low levels. Meanwhile, international oil price is expected to
continue fluctuating at high levels in 2012, and the pressure of rising operating costs on shipping enterprises
will continue to increase.

Initial planning for the coming years

In the coming years, the Group will steadily reinforce its fleet composition adjustment strategy. According to the
current ranking in the industry, the Group’s oil tanker fleet and dry bulk fleet are both among the top 10
independent shipowners in the world. As new vessels are gradually being delivered for use, the Group will
continue to dispose the old vessels which are of high fuel consumption, small deadweight tonnes and low
market competitiveness by stages in a timely manner, so as to further optimize its fleet composition and
enhance the integrated capacity of the Group’s fleets.

In accordance with the signed book orders for new vessels, the delivery of new vessels of the Group are as

follows:
In 2012 In 2013 In 2014
Capacity Capacity Capacity
(deadweight (deadweight (deadweight
Numbers tonnes) Numbers tonnes) Numbers tonnes)
Tankers 13 800,000 3 750,000 — —
Bulk vessels 31 3,220,000 11 1,050,000 4 720,000

Operational target for 2012

In 2012, 44 new vessels of the Group with a total tonnage of 4,020,000 deadweight tonnes are scheduled to be
delivered for use, including 13 tankers of 800,000 deadweight tonnes and 31 bulk vessels of 3,220,000
deadweight tonnes. As a result, the total shipping capacity of the Group which could be used in the Group’s
operations in 2012 is expected to be 15.25 million deadweight tonnes, representing an increase of 18.7% as
compared with that of the same period in 2011.

As at 15 March 2012, the Group had signed contracts of affreightment in respect of dry bulk cargo transportation
for 2012 (“COA Contracts”) with the contract volume of 42.55 million tons and a certain decrease in the basic
shipping rates.

Based on its view of the domestic and overseas shipping markets in 2012, and taking into account of the
delivery of new vessels, the Group’s operating targets are as follows: shipping volume of approximately 444.6
billion tonne nautical miles, an increase of 28.8% as compared with 2011; estimated turnover of approximately
RMB14.62 billion, an increase of 18.8%; operating costs of approximately RMB13.26 billion, an increase of
25.3% as compared with 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

5. OUTLOOK AND HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2012 (Continued)

(4) Work initiatives in 2012

To cope with the current market situation, the Group will:

i)

i)

ii)

v)

Vi)

make efforts in consolidating internal resources. The execution of strategic consolidation of resources is in
the top priority list of the Group for the year. The Group’s principal businesses are oil shipments, dry bulk
shipments and LNG shipments. The Group intends to establish two wholly-owned subsidiaries to specialize
in operating dry bulk shipments and oil shipments respectively and to take the lead in completing the
consolidation of the dry bulk assets of the Company. The Board believes that a clearer and smoother
management system will enable the Group to provide clients with better quality services with improved
efficiency, and to achieve higher operation efficiency;

greatly enhance marketing efforts, continue to strengthen cooperation with strategic customers and further
consolidate and expand the Group’s shares in both domestic and international shipping markets. In 2012,
the Group will adhere to its strategy of reinforcing coastal business and developing offshore business,
seek to change the development mode based on stable supply and market expansion. For bulk cargoes
transportation, the Company will continue to promote strategic cooperation with Huaneng, Shenhua,
Baosteel, Shougang, China Resources, Shenergy, Shanghai Electric Power and Guangzhou Holding through
joint venture partnerships and other means, with an aim to expand its size of controllable capacity and
enhance control of the coastal thermal coal transportation market as well as its market presence. For oil
product transportation, the Group will endeavor to strengthen cooperation with domestic and foreign large
oil companies, and to leverage on the execution of the cooperation agreement entered into with Sinopec
Corp., actively carry on negotiations with CNPC and CNOOC to facilitate deeper cooperation, in order to
expand the Group’s market shares in China’s self-produced oil shipping market;

strengthen its cost control system to enhance cost effectiveness. In 2012, the Group will continue to
strengthen control over fuel costs, management and other fees. Fuel costs are one of the Group’s major
costs. The Group will continue to strengthen energy-saving and the use of energy-saving technologies,
implement the policy of economic speed and strive to control fuel costs;

put efforts in implementing adjustments to vessel composition and delivering new vessels, enhance vessel
management and endeavor to nurture talents. 2012 is the peak year for the Group to take delivery of new
vessels. The Group will implement adjustments to vessel composition based on the fleet development
planning, and focus on training selected personnel who are familiar with the international operation of
transocean activities and crew for large vessels, so as to ensure the Group’s staff training is in line with or
ahead of its fleet expansion and build a solid foundation for the optimization of fleet composition;

expand its financing sources to secure development funds for the Company. According to the Group’s
shipbuilding plans, the capital expenditure of the Group from 2012 to 2014 is RMB9.39 billion, RMB3.18
billion and RMBO.8 billion respectively. Meanwhile, the associated and joint venture companies of the
Group have a strong demand for capital increases. In this connection, the Company will further strengthen
cooperation with banks to maintain smooth financing channels; and

continue to strengthen safety and security. We will work hard to avoid possibilities of ship collision, carry
out anti-piracy, fire prevention and anti-pollution measures, and improve the building and operating of
comprehensive security system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has placed much emphasis on corporate governance and accountability. Good corporate governance

will be able to improve the capacity of the Company in the scientific decision and the guard against risks, to ensure the

normal operations effectively, and to promote sustainable development of the Company. The board of directors of the

Company (“Board”) believes that shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) can derive the greatest benefits from

good corporate governance.

IMPROVEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Company was able to regulate its operations in accordance with domestic and
overseas regulatory requirements. In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
and related laws and regulations as well as the securities regulatory rules of the jurisdictions in which the Company
was listed, and in light of the actual conditions of the Company, the Company constantly formulates, improves and
implements various systems and related procedures for each of the special committees to operate under the
Board. In order to make the system of the Company more in line with the existing laws, regulations and regulatory
documents, improve the Company’s system and enhance corporate governance, the Group continued to strengthen
corporate governance and system establishment in the first half of 2011 and amended the “Articles” and the relevant
rules of procedure, including “Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors”, “Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory
Committee” and “Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting” and formulated “Working Regulations for Independent
Directors”, “Measures for the Administration of Connected Transactions”, “Risk Control System for Connected
Transactions with China Shipping Finance Co., Ltd.” and “Working Regulations for Secretary to the Board”.

During the Reporting Period, checks and balances were achieved through the coordination among the Shareholders’
meeting, the Board and its related special Board committees, the supervisory committee of the Company
(“Supervisory Committee”) and the management headed by the chief executive officer. Together with the effective
internal control and management systems, the Company’s internal management and operations was further
standardized and the corporate governance of the Company is further enhanced.

IMPROVEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has been committed to the perfection and improvement of its internal control system, complemented
with special activities such as corporate governance to thoroughly strengthen the establishment of its internal
management system. The Board of the Company is responsible for the establishment, improvement and effective
implementation of internal control; the Supervisory Committee supervises the establishment and implementation
of internal control by the Board; the management is responsible for organizing and taking the lead in the daily
operation of internal control of the Company; the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) is responsible
for guiding and supervising the evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control by internal organs of the Company.

To strengthen and regulate enterprise internal control, and enhance the level of operational management and risk
prevention capability, the Board of the Company passed the Resolution on the Amendment of the “Internal Control
Standard of China Shipping Development Company Limited” ({BFMERT <H G ERMDER AR AMEHIRE
> )% ZE)) at the 12th board meeting for 2008 pursuant to the Basic Standard for Enterprise Internal Control ({{&
ENEHEHIEARE)) jointly promulgated by the Ministry of Finance, the Securities Regulatory Commission, the
Audit Office, the Banking Regulatory Commission and the Insurance Regulatory Commission of the People’s Republic
of China (the “five ministries”) on 22 May 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

IMPROVEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (Continued)

In April 2010, the five ministries jointly issued the Implementation Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Control ({1
ERIIEHIECEIES|)) (hereinafter referred to as the “Implementation Guidelines” ), and companies dually listed
in both domestic and overseas markets shall first implement the Implementation Guidelines since 1 January 2011.
The five ministries require companies going public to be fully prepared before implementation.

To satisfy the regulatory requirements for companies going public, the Company has energetically facilitated and
implemented the construction of internal control step by step. Under the strong support of Baker Tilly China, the
Company’s domestic auditors, the Company completed preparing the Internal Control Manual of China Shipping
Development in December 2011 following the organization, comparison and comprehensive categorization of all
documents such as rules and regulations of the Company. The Internal Control Manual of China Shipping
Development ((FR/&Z%E AIZFMM)) consists of five parts: Part | Introduction; Part [ Company Profile; Part IlI
Internal Control Manual of China Shipping Development; Part IV Internal Control Manual of China Shipping Oil
Transportation; Part V Internal Control Manual of China Shipping Tramp.

The manual is prepared based on the Basic Standard for Enterprise Internal Control ({12 R &R H E AR5 ))
and the Implementation Guidelines promulgated by the five ministries. In the course of preparation, making reference
to and taking advantage of the achievements in effective internal control made by domestic and overseas peer
companies in the past, in close combination with the Company’s reality, the manual reflects the basic contents of
internal control construction in details and intuitively describes work processes and multi-level approval authority in
diagrams, therefore it is quite instructive and practical.

In accordance with the implementation schedule formulated by the five ministries, companies dually listed in both
domestic and overseas markets shall first implement the Implementation Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Control
(¥ REIEFIELERES])) since 1 January 2011. The Company, dually listed in the respective markets of “A
shares” and “H shares” in Shanghai and Hong Kong, has completed preparing the Internal Control Manual as
scheduled in compliance with the relevant requirements of the Ministry of Finance and securities regulatory authorities.
The manual took effect on 13 January 2012 upon approval by the Board.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE COMPANY FROM THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder, China Shipping (Group) Company, in respect of its
business, personnel, asset, organizational structure and finance. The Company has independent and comprehensive
business operations and management capabilities.

Annual Report 2011 CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

IV. THE ESTABLISHMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STAFF SALARY SYSTEM,

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL AND INCENTIVE MECHANISM

The Board has implemented the annual salary system and formulated requirements for annual salary system
assessment for the senior operating management of its cargo vessel sub-company, oil tanker sub-company,
subsidiaries and the headquarters.

In terms of the staff salary system, the Company has established post wages and effectiveness wages together
with years of service wages, performance wages and complementary wages. Among them, post wages reflect the
difference in responsibilities for different posts, years of service wages reflect the difference in the period of service
accumulated and performance wages reflect the difference in labour contribution. Complementary wages reflect
the state’s special treatment.

The Company wishes to adopt more effective measures in the future to continuously improve its internal management
system so as to bring the incentive and restriction functions of the distribution system into full play.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had completed an assessment on the managements’ performance on
achieving objectives set for 2011 annual results. In view of the managements’ good work in relieving the negative
impact created by the financial crisis on the international and domestic shipping markets, leading all staff of the
Company to strive for increasing revenue while reducing expenses, proceeding refinement to management, enhancing
safety management and operation efficiency of the Company, and satisfactorily accomplished the operations targets
set by the Board in the year 2011, at the meeting of the remuneration and appraisal committee of the Company
(“Remuneration and Appraisal Committee”) convened on 8 March 2011, a proposal on awarding bonus payment of
20% of the managements’ annual salaries in 2011 to the management was submitted to the Board. The above
proposal had been approved at the fifth Board Meeting of the Company in 2011.

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. Compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is dedicated to enhancing the levels of its corporate governance. Throughout the year of 2011,
the Company has been in strict compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

2. General Meetings

General meetings provide a good opportunity for direct communications and build a sound relationship between
the Board and the Shareholders. In order to ensure that all Shareholders enjoy equal status and are able to
exercises their rights effectively, the Company holds Shareholders’ meetings every year in strict compliance
with the requirements for notices and convening procedures laid down by the relevant laws, regulations and
the Articles. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2011, eight resolutions were
passed, among which the Report of Directors for 2010, the Report of Supervisory Committee for 2010, the
profit distribution plan for 2010 and the remuneration proposal of the Company’s directors (“Directors”) and
supervisors (“Supervisors”) for 2011 were adopted.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

3. The Board

(1)

@)

The responsibility of the Board

The Board carries out actions in relation to corporate governance in a conscientious and responsible
manner. The Company elects its Directors in strict compliance with the procedures for election of Directors
as set out in the Articles. Each Director shall act in the interests of the Shareholders, and shall use its best
endeavors to perform his duties and obligations as a Director in accordance with all the applicable laws
and regulations. Duties of the Board include making decisions of the Company’s investment scheme and
business plan, preparation of the Company’s profit distribution and loss recovery proposals, formulation of
the Company’s capital operation proposal and implementation of resolutions approved at general meetings.

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the Company as well as supervising the operations,
strategic policy and performance of the Group. The Board also delegates its power and responsibilities to
the management for the management of the Group. In addition, the Board delegates responsibilities to
professional committees under the Board. Details of those committees are set out in this report.

Composition of the Board

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, all the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are elected by the general meeting of shareholders with their terms for 3 years. Directors
may be reelected upon the expiration of their terms.

The Directors of the Company during 2011 were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Shaode (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Zehua (Vice Chairman) (Resigned on 16 September 2011)
Mr. Lin Jianging (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wang Daxiong
Mr. Zhang Guofa
Mr. Mao Shijia (Resigned on 30 January 2011)
Mr.Yan Zhichong (Chief Executive Officer) (Appointed on 6 April 2011)
Mr. Qiu Guoxuan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhu Yongguang
Mr. Gu Gongyun (Resigned on 16 September 2011)
Mr. Zhang Jun
Mr. Lu Wenbin

On 16 January 2012, Mr. Xu Lirong and Mr. Wang Wusheng were appointed as an executive Director and
an independent non-executive Director, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

3. The Board (Continued)

(2) Composition of the Board (Continued)

Members of the Board, including the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the “CEQO”) of the Company,
do not have any financial, business, family or other major/related relationship with one another. Such a
balanced structure ensures the solid independence of the entire Board. lts composition has complied with
the requirement under the Listing Rules that at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors. The biographies of all Directors are set out in this annual report on
pages 146 to 149 and contain details on the diversified skills, expertise, experience and qualifications of all
Directors.

The Board regularly reviews its structure, size and composition. The Company follows a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. The appointment of a new
Director is a collective decision of the Board, taking into consideration the expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment of that appointee to the relevant principal division, the Company and the Group.

(3) The Responsibility of Directors

The Board ensures that each newly appointed Director has proper understanding of the operations and
businesses of the Group and is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under the relevant rules and regulations
and the common law, the Listing Rules, applicable statutory requirements and other regulatory requirements
and the business and governance policy of the Company. Directors should closely follow the changes in
legislations and compliance, operations and markets as well as the strategic development of the Group
and be continuously updated about the relevant knowledge so as to perform their duties. Independent non-
executive Directors play an active role in Board meetings and can make contribution to the formulation of
strategies and policies and make reliable judgments on strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, major appointment and code of conduct. They also serve as members of various Board
committees to monitor the overall performance of the Group in achieving predetermined corporate objectives
and benchmarks and making reports for such performance.

Performance of Independent Non-executive Directors’ Duties

The Company has adopted the rules and procedures on independent non-executive Directors’ work. The
Company has four independent non-executive Directors (for the period from 1 January 2011 to 16 September
2011) and three independent non-executive Directors (for the period from 16 September 2011 to 31 December
2012), in both instances exceeding one-third of the total number of the Directors at the relevant time, in compliance
with the minimum number of independent non-executive directors required under the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive Directors are professionals with extensive experience in the fields of accounting,
law, shipping and economics, respectively. Mr. Lu Wenbin, an independent non-executive Director, has appropriate
accounting and financial experience as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. For the biographical
details of Mr. Lu Wenbin, please refer to the section headed BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT in this annual report. The independent non-executive Directors
do not hold other positions in the Company. They perform their duties in accordance to the Articles and the
relevant requirements under the applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

4. Performance of Independent Non-executive Directors’ Duties (Continued)

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a
term of three years. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company, which will expire on 24 May 2012.

In 2011, the independent non-executive Directors earnestly and diligently performed their duties in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles. The independent non-executive Directors actively attended
Board meetings during the Reporting Period, and reviewed documents presented by the Company. They also
provided professional and constructive advice on the Company’s major decisions and worked with dedication
to safeguard the legal interests of the Company and all its Shareholders as a whole. They expressed their
views objectively and independently and played a part in the checks and balances of the decision making
process of the Board of Directors. The independent non-executive Directors reviewed regular reports of the
Company diligently. They had discussions with external auditors in regular and special meetings before and
after their year-end auditing. Such meetings were held prior to Board meetings. During the Reporting Period,
the independent non-executive Directors did not object to the motions, resolutions and other matters discussed
at the meetings of the Board.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors about their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the independent non-
executive Directors are completely independent of the Company, its major Shareholders and its affiliates and
comply fully with the requirements concerning the independent non-executive Directors under the Listing Rules.

5. Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in accordance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) (Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Board Meetings

In 2011, the Board convened a total of 17 meetings and considered and passed 62 resolutions so as to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group. The following table shows attendances of the Directors
at the Board meetings.

Executive Directors Rate of attendance
Mr. Li Shaode (ZF#%) 16/16
Mr. Ma Zehua (55£%) (Resigned on 16 September 2011) 9/12
Mr. Lin Jianging (#/&/8) 14/16
Mr. Wang Daxiong (FE X%) 13/16
Mr. Zhang Guofa (3REDEE) 16/16
Mr. Mao Shijia (1%) (Resigned on 30 January 2011) 11
Mr. Yan Zhichong (54 ) (Appointed on 6 April 2011) 11/11
Mr. Qiu Guoxuan (EE=) 17/17

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Yongguang (ZR7K3¢) 15/17
Mr. Zhang Jun (3RE) 14/17
Mr. Lu Wenbin (& 3XH) 17/17
Mr. Gu Gongyun (E&L1#z) (Resigned on 16 September 2011) 12/12

Minutes of all meetings are recorded by a designated officer of the Company, and all proposals and resolutions
reviewed and approved in each meeting are filed in accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”)

The posts of Chairman of the Board and the CEO are assumed by different individuals so as to maintain
independence and balanced judgment views. The Board has appointed Mr. Li Shaode as the Chairman who is
responsible for execution and leading the Board so that the Board can operate and perform its duties effectively
and handle all important and appropriate issues in a timely manner. The CEO, Mr. Mao Shijia (from 1 January
2011 to 21 January 2011) and Mr. Yan Zhichong (since 21 January 2011), each an executive Director, is
responsible for executing the business policy and decisions on management and operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

8. The Professional Committee of the Board

In compliance with the code provisions set out in the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established four professional committees under the Board, including the Audit Committee, Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee, a strategy committee (“Strategy Committee”) and a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”).

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-executive Directors (until Mr. Gu Gongyun
resigned), in which Mr. Lu Wenbin is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include the review of the Company’s financial reports, consideration of the appointment of independent
domestic and international auditors, approval of audit-related services, supervision over the Company’s
internal financial reporting procedures and management policies. At least three meetings of the Audit
Committee are convened annually to review the accounting policies and internal control system adopted
by the Company and the relevant financial issues, so as to ensure the completeness, fairness and accuracy
of the Company’s financial statements and other relevant information.

In 2011, the Audit Committee held three meetings. Minutes of the meetings are recorded by a designated
officer, and the proposals approved in each meeting are filed in accordance with relevant regulations. The
following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit Committee:

Members of the Audit Committee Rate of attendance
Mr. Lu Wenbin (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Zhu Yongguang 1/3
Mr. Zhang Jun 3/3
Mr. Gu Gongyun (Resigned on 16 September 2011) 1/2

The followings are the work reports prepared by the Audit Committee in respect of the performance of its
responsibilities relating to the interim and annual results and the review of the internal control system and
the performance of the other responsibilities set out in the Code during the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee considered the proposals in respect of the annual financial report of the Company for
2010, status report of the Company ‘s continuing connected transactions for 2010, appraisal report of the
Company’s internal control for 2010 , the appointment of the Company’s PRC and overseas auditors for
2011 and the interim financial report of the Company for 2011, and formed the written opinions of the Audit
Committee in respect of the Company’s financial report for 2010, the draft profit distribution plan for 2010
and the interim financial report of the Company for 2011.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

8. The Professional Committee of the Board (Continued)

(1)

@)

3

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee holds at least one meeting with the external auditor each year to discuss any issues in the
course of the auditing and the management is not allowed to attend the meeting. The Audit Committee will first
review the quarterly results, interim and annual reports before submitting the results to the Board. When reviewing
the quarterly results, interim and annual reports, the Audit Committee will not only pay attention to changes in
the accounting policies and practices but also comply with the relevant requirements, under such accounting
policies, the Listing Rules and relevant laws. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all four independent non-executive Directors (until Mr. Gu Gongyun
resigned on 16 September 2011), in which Mr. Gu Gongyun had been the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee before his resignation, and Mr. Zhu Yongguar became the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee subsequently. The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line
with the terms of reference referred to in the Code are as follows:

(a) make recommendations on the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management of the
Company to seek approval from the Board; and

(b) consider the remuneration package of Directors and senior management and make recommendations
on salaries and bonuses, including incentives.

In 2011, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and all members attended the meeting. In the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the current emoluments of Directors and senior
management and assessed the implementation of the working plan of the Company for 2011. The Company’s
remuneration policy is based on the market practice,the operating results achieved by the Company and
the qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and senior management. The following table shows
the attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee:

Members of the Remuneration Committee Rate of attendance
Mr. Gu Gongyun (Chairman) (Resigned on 16 September 2011) 11
Mr. Zhu Youngguang 11
Mr. Zhang Jun 11
Mr. Lu Wenbin 11
Strategy Committee

The duties of the Strategy Committee include review and evaluation of the Company’s long-term development
strategy, significant investment projects, financial budget and strategic plan of investment returns and
submit its advice to the Board. The Strategy Committee comprises all seven executive Directors and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Zhu Yongguang and Mr. Zhang Jun, and Mr. Li Shaode is
the Chairman of the committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

8. The Professional Committee of the Board (Continued)

3

(4)

Strategy Committee (Continued)

During 2011, the Strategy Committee held three meetings, advising on the fleet restructuring plan,
construction of new vessels and sale of old vessels.

Nomination Committee

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, election and replacement of Directors shall be proposed to the
Shareholders’ general meeting for approval. Shareholders whose shareholding represents 3% or more of
the voting shares of the Company are entitled to make such proposal and request the Board to authorize
the Chairman to consolidate a list of the director candidates nominated by the Shareholders who are
entitled to make a proposal. As authorized by the Board, the Chairman shall consolidate a list of Director
candidates and order the Secretariat of the Board together with the relevant departments to prepare the
relevant procedural documents. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, the Company is required to give
notice of the Shareholders’ meeting to shareholders in writing 45 days in advance and dispatch a circular
to the Shareholders. Pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, the list, resume and emoluments of
the candidates for directorship must be set out in the circular to the Shareholders to facilitate voting by
Shareholders. The new Directors must be approved by more than half of the total voting shares held by the
Shareholders present in person or by proxy at the Shareholders’ general meeting.

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Jianging and Mr. Zhang
Guofa, and all four independent non-executive Directors (until Mr. Gu Gongyun resigned), in which Mr. Zhu
Yongguang is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

In 2011, the Nomination Committee held four meetings. The Nomination Committee considered the proposals
in respect of advising on the change of general manager of the Company, the appointment of Mr. Yan
Zhichong as an executive Director, the appointment of Mr. Xu Lirong as an executive Director and the
appointment of Mr. Wang Wusheng as an independent non-executive Director and submit the proposals to
the Board for its approval. The following table shows the attendance of members of the Nomination

Committee:

Members of the Nomination Committee Rate of attendance
Mr. Zhu Yongguang (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lin Jianging 4/4
Mr. Zhang Guofa 4/4
Mr. Lu Wenbin 4/4
Mr. Zhang Jun 4/4
Mr. Gu Gongyun (Resigned on 16 September 2011) 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

10.

Accountability and Audit

The management provides relevant explanations and information to the Board so that the Board can make
informed assessments on the financial and other information submitted to it for approval.

The Board has confirmed its responsibility for preparing financial reports that can reflect the financial position
of the Group in a true and fair way for each financial year. When submitting quarterly results, interim and
annual financial statements and announcement to Shareholders, Directors shall strive to submit a balanced
and easily comprehensible assessment on the present conditions and prospects of the Group.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties on events or conditions which cast significant doubt on the
sustained operating capability of the Group. Therefore, the Board will continue to adopt the sustained operating
basis in preparation of the accounts.

The Board has confirmed its responsibility for providing balanced, clear and easily comprehensible assessments
in the Company’s annual reports and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and reporting to the regulatory bodies.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2011. Baker Tilly China and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the domestic and international auditors of the
Company respectively, acknowledge reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

In 2011, the Group paid an audit fee of RMB1,650,000 to Baker Tilly China and RMB1,650,000 to Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited, respectively.

Delegation by the Board of Directors

The management is authorized to carry out daily management of the Company. Department heads are
responsible for various aspects of the operations. The major corporate matters delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of quarterly results, interim and annual reports and announcements (for
approval by the Board before publication), the execution of business strategies and measures adopted by the
Board, the implementation of the internal control system and risk management procedure and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.
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V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

11.

12.

Supervisory Committee

The supervisory committee consists of six members, of which two supervisors are elected from the staff as
representatives of the employees of the Company. The supervisors of the Company during 2011 were:

Mr. Kou Laigi (Chairman)

Mr.Yan Zhichong (Resigned on 21 January 2011)
Mr. Yu Shicheng (Resigned on 27 October 2011)

Mr. Xu Hui

Ms. Chen Xiuling (representatives of the employees)
Mr. Luo Yuming (representatives of the employees)

The Supervisory Committee is responsible for supervision over the Board and its members and senior
management, so as to prevent them from abusing their authorities and violating the legal interests of the
Shareholders, the Company and its staff. In 2011, the Supervisory Committee convened eight meetings, at
which the Company’s financial position, significant investment projects and legal compliance of cooperate
operations as well as performance of the senior management were reviewed. In 2011, the Supervisory Committee
has complied with the principle of creditability to proactively perform their functions. For the details, please refer
to the section headed “Report of the Supervisory Committee” in this annual report.

Investor Relations

The Company has actively and faithfully performed its duties regarding the disclosure of information and the
work on investor relations. The Company has strictly abided by the principles of regulation, accuracy,
completeness and timely disclosure of information. The Company has established a designated department
for investor relations, which is responsible for the matters concerning investor relations and has formulated the
“Investor Relations Management Measures” to regulate the relations with the investors. Through various
approaches and channels such as organizing results presentation, roadshow, telephone conference, a corporate
website, investors’ visits to the Company and answering the investors’ enquires, the Company’s management
strengthened close communications and relationship with the investors and analysts, thereby enhancing investors’
recognition of the Company.

In order to further improve the information disclosure management system, to enhance the quality of annual
report disclosure and transparency of the Company, the Company has, in accordance with relevant state laws
and regulations, regulatory documents and the Company’s Atrticles, formulated the “Annual Report Disclosure
of Major Accountability System for China Shipping Development”. Accordingly, if there are significant errors in
information disclosure of annual report, the responsibility of the person concerned should be held accountable
and make the appropriate treatment.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board” ) of directors (“Directors” ) of the Company hereby presents their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 (“Reporting Period” or “Year under
Review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activities consist of investment holding, and the shipment of oil and cargoes along the coast of
PRC and internationally.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are oil and cargo shipment,
and vessel chartering. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out
below.
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Results

Revenue
Operating costs

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Share of profits of
jointly-controlled entities

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders

of the company
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests

Total assets
Total liabilities and
non-controlling interests

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Year ended 31 December

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
12,157,458 11,283,594 8,729,969 17,214,283 12,394,739
(10,636,688) (8,930,842) (7,260,412) (11,110,771) (7,329,308)
1,520,770 2,352,752 1,469,557 6,103,512 5,065,431
234,121 201,883 251,572 460,900 542,947
(51,735) (42,887) (38,955) (87,907) (36,744)
(368,237) (315,759) (286,756) (256,883) (214,841)
(64,069) (36,007) (44,397) (284,429) (21,374)
368,775 216,596 61,099 531,566 165,745
(414,574) (205,170) (69,783) (84,074) (173,129)
1,225,051 2,171,408 1,342,337 6,432,685 5,328,035
(146,287) (449,445) (277,696) (1,056,690) (781,652)
1,078,764 1,721,963 1,064,641 5,375,995 4,546,383
1,047,315 1,716,522 1,064,794 5,373,010 4,546,383
31,449 5,441 (153) 2,985 —
1,078,764 1,721,963 1,064,641 5,375,995 4,546,383
RMB30.76 cents RMB50.42 cents RMB31.28 cents RMB158.64 cents RMB136.69 cents
RMB29.31 cents RMB50.42 cents RMB31.28 cents RMB158.64 cents RMB135.09 cents
51,588,814 40,710,175 33,929,549 30,028,594 23,707,443
(27,949,997) (18,131,630) (12,534,976) (8,574,574) (7,535,928)
23,638,817 22,578,545 21,394,573 21,454,020 16,171,515

This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Notes:

1. The consolidated results, total assets, total liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the four years ended 31
December 2010 are extracted from the Company’s 2010 annual report dated 16 March 2011, while those for the year ended 31
December 2011 were prepared based on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated balance sheet
as set out on pages 52 and 54, respectively, of the financial statements.

2. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 is based on the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 of RMB1,047,315,000 and 3,404,552,270 ordinary shares. Earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 is RMB0.3076.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for year ended 31 December 2011 is based on the diluted profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of RMB1,053,470,000 and the diluted weighted average number of shares of 3,593,728,000 shares.
Diluted eamings per share is RMB0.2931.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 of RMB1,716,522,000 and 3,404,552,270 ordinary shares. Earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 is RMB0.5042 and diluted earnings per share is RMB0.5042.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to 54 and 57 to 58.

The net profit of the Company for 2011, as determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP”), was RMB1,040,974,000, 10% of which will be transferred to the statutory surplus reserve.
According to the relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s reserves available for distribution are determined based
on the lower of the amount determined under PRC GAAP and the amount determined under HK GAAP.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10 per share in respect of the year to shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) on the register of members at the close of business on 29 May 2012. There was no
arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits (note 35) within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB12,000,000 (2010: RMB2,068,263).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group during the year are set out
in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

According to the articles of association of the Company (“Articles”), the existing shareholders have pre-emptive rights to
purchase shares in any new issue of shares of the Company in proportion to their shareholding.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company issued A-Share convertible bonds which has been approved by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (Zheng Jian Xu Ke 2011 No. 1152). The aggregate nominal value of the convertible bonds issued was
RMB3.95 billion, with a term of 6 years. The Shanghai Stock Exchange has approved the listing of the RMB3.95 billion
A-Share convertible bonds (bond code “110017”) on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and which are listed since 12
August 2011. Further details of the Company’s A-Share convertible bonds are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements on page 121.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, as determined based on the lower of the
amount determined under PRC GAAP and the amount determined under HK GAAP, amounted to RMB10,420,632,000
before the proposed final dividend.

In addition, according to the PRC Company Law, an amount of approximately RMB3,947,214,000 standing to the credit
of the Company’s share premium account was available for distribution by way of future capitalisation issues.

NOTES AND BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Company and the Group are set out in note 27
to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the Year under Review, the five largest customers of the Group combined accounted for less than 32% (2010: 34%)
of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer is UNIPEC Asia Co., Limited [Et4& A1k (S5)0) AR A A ] and the
sales to it accounted for 10% (2010: 10%) of the Group’s total sales in that year. None of the Directors, supervisors, their
associates, or any Shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors and supervisors, owns 5% or more of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

In the Year under Review, the five largest suppliers of materials and services to the Group combined accounted for 37%
(2010: 39%) of the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier is a jointly-controlled entity of China Shipping (Group)
Company (“China Shipping”, the Company’s holding company), and the purchases from it accounted for 29% (2010:
29%) of the Group’s total purchases in that year. Four subsidiaries of China Shipping constituted all of the remaining
four largest suppliers of the Group.

Except as mentioned above, none of the Directors, supervisors, their associates of any Shareholders, who, to the best
knowledge of the directors and supervisors, owns 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial
interests in the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the Reporting Period were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Shaode

Mr. Ma Zehua (resigned on 16 Sepember 2011)
Mr. Lin Jianging

Mr. Wang Daxiong

Mr. Zhang Guofa

Mr. Mao Shijia (resigned on 30 January 2011)
Mr. Qiu Guo Xuan
Mr. Yan Zhichong (appointed on 6 April 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Yongguang

Mr. Gu Gongyun (resigned on 16 Sepember 2011)
Mr. Zhang Jun

Mr. Lu Wenbin

Supervisors:

Mr. Kou Laiqi

Mr. Yan Zhichong (resigned on 21 January 2011)
Mr. Xu Hui

Mr. Yu Shicheng (resigned on 27 October 2011)

Mr. Luo Yuming
Ms. Chen Xiuling

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, all the Directors are appointed for a term of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Zhang Jun, Mr. Lu Wenbin and Mr. Zhu
Yongguang, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and supervisors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set
out pages 146 to 152 of the annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

SERVICE CONTRACT OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the directors and supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company, which will expire on 24 May
2012 and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ written notice.

No director or supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by
the Company’s Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is headed by Mr. Gu Gongyun, an independent non-executive Director (from 1 January
2011 to 16 September 2011) and is headed by Mr. Zhu Yongguang, also an independent non-executive Director,
subsequently after Mr. Gu’s resignation. The other three members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Zhang Jun,
Mr. Lu Wenbin and Mr. Zhu Yongguang, all being independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Pursuant to the services agreement as described in note 41(1) to the financial statements, China Shipping provided
miscellaneous management and other services to the Group during the year for a total fee of RMB24,740,000 (2010:
RMB31,407,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PENSIONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the following shareholders held 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
of the Company, carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at any shareholders’ general meeting of the Company,
according to the register of interests in shares required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”):

Percentage of
the total number Percentage of the

Class of Number of shares of the total number of
Name of substantial shareholders shares shares held relevant class issued shares
China Shipping (Group) Company A 1,578,500,000 (long) 74.86% 46.36%
Davis Selected Advisers, L.P. H 117,041,570 (long) 9.03% 3.44%
(d/b/a: Davis Advisors)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. H 104,214,609 (long) 8.04% 3.06%
H 3,520,000 (short) 0.27% 0.10%
H 72,408,792 (pool) 5.59% 2.13%
Mondrian Investment Partners Limited H 88,890,000 (long) 6.86% 2.61%

Note 1: A - A Shares
H - H Shares
Long - represents long position
Short - means short position
Pool - denotes lending pool

Note 2: Percentage shown on that as recorded in the Section 352 SFO register kept by the Company. As at 31 December 2011, the
total issued share capital of the Company was 3,404,552,270 Shares of which 1,296,000,000 were H Shares and 2,108,552,270
were A Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person had registered an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2011 or during the Reporting Period, none of the directors or supervisors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, none of the directors, supervisors, chief executive or their associates had registered an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or supervisor or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2011, none of our Directors had any interest in any business which competes or may compete with
the business of our Group.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group’s litigation and contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company and the Group had connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Further details of the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions are set out in notes
41(2)(i)(ii)(iii)(iv) and notes 41(1) and 41(3) to the financial statements, respectively.

The EGM held on 22nd December 2009 has approved the continuing connected transactions for a term of three years
which commenced from 1 January 2010.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions set out in note 41 to the financial statements, and have confirmed that, during the Reporting Period, such
transactions were entered into:
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(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has further confirmed that, the values of all connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions between the Group and its connected persons which are subject to annual caps
have not exceeded their respective annual caps.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
factual finding procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures
to the Board of Directors and confirmed that in respect of the disclosed continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company;

C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions set out in notes 41(1), 41(2)(i)(ii)(iii)(iv)
and 41(3) to the consolidated financial statement, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 22 October 2009 made by the Company in respect of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

EMPLOYEES

As at the end of 2011, the Company had approximately 6,317 employees. Adjustment of employee remuneration are
calculated in accordance with the Company’s turnover and profitability and is determined by assessing the correlation
between the total salary paid and the economic efficiency of the enterprise. Under this mechanism, management of
employees remuneration will be more efficient while employees will be motivated to work hard to bring encouraging
results of the Company. Save for the remuneration disclosed above, the Company does not maintain any share option
scheme for its employees and the employees do not enjoy any bonus. The Company regularly provides for its administrative
personnel training on various subjects, including operation management, foreign languages, computer skills, industry
knowhow and policies and laws. These training maybe in different forms, such as seminars, site visits and study tours.

In 2011, the total staff costs was RMB1,768,719,000 (2010: RMB1,556,824,000).
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EMPLOYEE HOUSING

According to the relevant local laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), both the Group and
its employees in PRC are required to contribute to an accommodation fund according to a certain percentage of the
salaries and wages of the employees. There are no other significant contributory obligations beyond the contributions to
the said fund.

The Company provided staff quarters to selected employees and, according to a housing reform scheme in Shanghai,
the PRC, arrangements were made to transfer the staff quarters to employees who agreed to remain in service for the
Company for a period of 10 years. As of the date of this report, nearly all of the staff quarters have been transferred to
employees on the above basis.

MEDICAL INSURANCE SCHEME

As required by the regulations of the local government in PRC effective from 1 July 2001, the Company participates in
a defined contribution medical insurance scheme organized by local social security authorities. Under the scheme, the
Company is required to make monthly contributions at the rate of 12% of the total salaries of the employees, after
certain adjustments on individual employee’s salary in accordance with the applicable regulations, In addition, pursuant
to the aforementioned regulations, the contributions are accounted for as staff welfare payables accrued by the Company.
The Company has no obligation for the payment of medical benefits beyond such contributions to the registered insurance
companies.

PENSION AND ENTERPRISE ANNUITY SCHEMES

Details of the pension and enterprise annuity schemes of the Company are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25%
of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(i) According to the first Board meeting of the Company held on 13 February 2012, the Board approved CSHK
Development, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with China Shipping Industrial
Co., Ltd. and CS Industrial (Jiangsu), both are related parties of the Group, for the construction of the tanker of
110,000 dead weight tons for the transportation of crude oil and refined oil on 13 January 2012. The total consideration
for the construction of the tanker is approximately USD53,280,000.

(i) According to the second Board meeting of the Company held on 1 February 2012, the Board agreed as part of the
Company’s strategy to establish two wholly-owned subsidiaries, which will be responsible for the operation of dry
bulk transportation and oil products transportation respectively, and to gradually inject the Company’s dry bulk
vessel and oil tank related businesses into the two wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(iii) According to the third Board meeting of the Company held on 20 February 2012, the Board approved the funds of
RMB 380,000,000 arise from the Company’s A-Share convertible bonds issued on 1 August 2011 to be used as
working capital of the Company for not more than 6 months.
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(iv) According to the fourth Board meeting of the Company held on 15 March 2012, the Company will transfer
RMB104,097,000, being 10% of its net profit of RMB1,040,974,000 determined under PRC GAAP to the statutory
surplus reserve. The Directors also proposed to pay a final dividend for the year 2011 of RMBO0.10 per share (before
tax) based on the number of shares issued as at a date determined by the Company. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the Company’s Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

(v) According to the fourth Board meeting of the Company held on 15 March 2012, effective from 1 January 2012, the Board
approved to revise the estimated useful life of vessels to be 17 to 25 years. The estimated useful life of new vessels is 25
years, where the useful life of used vessels was determined based on actual remaining useful life. Residual values of
vessels were determined based on USD470 (approximately RMB2,960) per light displacement ton.

Details of significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors, in which Mr. Lu Wenbin is the Chairman of
the committee. The duties of the audit committee mainly include: the review of the Company’s financial reports,
consideration of the appointment of independent domestic and international auditors, approval of audit-related services,
supervision over the Company’s internal financial reporting procedures and management policies.

The Audit Committee has reviewed our Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by our Group.

AUDITOR

In 2010, the Company’s previous auditor, UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited (“UHY Hong Kong”), transferred its H-share audit
business to Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (KE:&E B & 5HAI B FTE R A7) (“Baker Tilly Hong Kong”). UHY Hong Kong
tendered its resignation to the Company as international auditor of the Company with effect from 16 November 2010. The
appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong was approved, confirmed and ratified in the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 25 January 2011. UHY Hong Kong confirmed in its letter of resignation dated 16 November 2010 that there
was no disagreement between UHY Hong Kong and the Company, nor were there matters connected with its resignation
that needed to be brought to the attention of the creditors, audit committee or shareholders of the Company.

The Board also confirmed that there were no other matters in respect of the change of international auditor which
should be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 1 November 2010, 18 November 2010 and 25 January 2011.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as international auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Shaode
Chairman

Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
15 March 2012
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

1. WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

(1) In 2011, the Supervisory Committee held eight meetings, details of which are set out below:

Date
1 Jan. 21
2 Jan. 30
3 Mar. 11
4 Mar. 16
5 Apr. 26
6 Aug 16
7 Oct. 27
8 Dec. 22

Resolutions

Resignation of Mr. Yan Zhichong as a supervisor

Proposal of issuing convertible bonds of the Company

Amendment of rules and procedures of meetings of the Supervisory Committee

2010 Supervisor Committee’s report of the Company

2010 financial report of the Company

Profit distribution plan of the Company for 2010

2010 annual report and annual report summary of the Company

2010 internal control self evaluation report of the Company

2010 society responsibility report of the Company

The salary standard for directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company for 2011

Implementation of supplementary medicare for the employees of the Company
Entrusted loan agreement of RMB 3.0 billion with China Shipping (Group) Company
Signing new financial services framework agreement with China Shipping Finance
Company Limited and the proposed annual caps for the deposit and loan transactions
contemplated thereunder

Capital increase to China Shipping Finance Company

Capital increase to Tianjin Zhonghai Huarun Shipping Company

2011 first quarterly report of the Company
Establish joint ventures of Eastern LNG and Northern LNG with MOL

2011 interim financial report of the Company

2011 interim report and 2011 interim report summary of the Company

Motion on the use of funds raised from convertible bonds to replace funds which
has been put into by self-financing

Motion on the use of funds raised from convertible bonds to complement the
company’s liquidity

2011 third quarterly report of the Company
Establish new joint ventures with Sinopec Kantons Holdings
Resignation of Mr. Yu Shicheng as a supervisor

Entering the chartering agreements of “Song Lin Wan”

Selling Hongqi120 and Hongqi124

Signing supplementary agreement to financial services framework agreement with
China Shipping (Group) Company
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (continued)

1.

WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (Continued)

)

(4)

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee executed their duties in strict compliance with the
PRC Company Law and the Company’s Articles of Associations of the inspection of the Company’s legal
operation, financial management, and the performance of their duties of directors, and senior managerial staff.

Members of the Supervisory Committee were present at all the meetings of the Board in 2011. The following
were presented to the supervisors: the 2010 audited financial report of the Company, the proposed profit
distribution plan of the Company for 2010, the 2010 annual report and annual report summary of the Company,
and the proposal of issuing convertible bonds of the Company. Through attending these Board meetings, the
supervisors are knowledgeable with the Company’s operation, development situation and the formation of
significant strategies.

Members of the Supervisory Committee were present at the 2010 AGM, at which the Supervisory Committee
gave an account of the 2010 report of the Supervisory Committee, and expressed the independent opinion on
the Company’s operation, financial situations and performance of their duties of the directors and senior
managerial staff. Members of the Supervisory Committee also presented at the two EGM held in 2011.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S VIEW OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION IN 2011:

(1)

(4)

As far as the Supervisory Committee is aware, the directors and the senior management of the Company have
not contravened any laws and regulations and/or the Company’s articles of associations or damaged the
interests of the Company when performing their duties; and

During the reporting period, the Company’s stable financial condition, sound financial management, and strict
internal controlling system enabled the smooth operation of the Company. The 2011 annual financial statements
represented a true and fair view of the financial situation and the operating results of the Company in 2011. The
audited financial reports audited by Baker Tilly China and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited respectively are
objective and fair.

In the reporting period, the Company issued RMB3.95 billion convertible bond publicly and the net amount
raised from such issue was RMB3.912 billion. In which, the Company has used RMB2,260.1 million in 2011,
used RMB380 million to complement the company’s liquidity and the fund left in the specific accounts for raised
funds was RMB1,286.21 million. The storage and use of the raised funds of the Company in 2011 is according
with “further notice to regulate listed companies to use raised funds”, “regulation for listed companies to use
raised funds of SSE”, “management system for raised funds” and other relevant laws, rules and regulations.
The Company stored and used the raised funds specifically, and did not change the use of raised funds in any
other forms or damage the shareholders’ interests. The Company did not use the raised funds unlawfully. The

sponsor has inspected the instance and expressed their opinion.

During the reporting period, the scrapping of old vessels was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and was
conducted on normal commercial terms. We have not found any insider trading in such transactions.

As far as the Supervisory Committee is aware, connected transactions entered into with the controlling
shareholder and its subsidiaries during the reporting period conformed to principles of fairness, openness and
impartiality. The prices of these connected transactions were negotiated on an arm’s length basis and were
conducted on normal commercial terms. Such transactions were not detrimental to the interests of the
shareholders, nor resulted in any loss of the Company’s assets.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (continued)

2. SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S VIEW OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION IN 2011: (Continued)
(6) The Company has established a comparatively complete internal controlling system and followed legitimate
decision-making process. The operation of the Company was in strict compliance with the PRC laws and

regulations, as well as the normalized process for listed companies. The internal control self evaluation is in
line with the actual situation of making continuous progress on internal control.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Kou Laiqi
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
15 March 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

24

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

RIS &t RSB A A IR 23
2nd Floor, 625 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong
IR B 625 2 M

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SHIPPING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(Established in the People’s Republic of China as joint stock company with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Shipping Development Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2012

Lo Wing See

Practising Certificate Number P04607
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue
Turnover
Operating costs

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Share of profits of jointly-controlled entities
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THEYEAR

Other comprehensive expenses

Exchange realignment

Net loss on cash flow hedges

Share of other comprehensive expense of associates

Other comprehensive expenses for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share — basic

Earnings per share - diluted

2011 2010

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
4 12,157,458 11,283,594
(10,636,688) (8,930,842)

1,520,770 2,352,752

5 234,121 201,883
(51,735) (42,887)
(368,237) (315,759)
(64,069) (36,007)

368,775 216,596
6 (414,574) (205,170)
7 1,225,051 2,171,408
10 (146,287) (449,445)
1,078,764 1,721,963
(279,730) (178,859)
(3,143) (13,642)

(8) —
(282,881) (192,501)

795,883 1,529,462

1,047,315 1,716,522

31,449 5,441

1,078,764 1,721,963

766,003 1,524,427

29,880 5,035

795,883 1,529,462

13 30.76 cents 50.42 cents
13 29.31 cents 50.42 cents

Details of the dividend payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in associates

Investments in jointly-controlled entities
Loan receivables

Available-for-sale investments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Bunker oil inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Loan to a shareholder of a subsidiary

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Current portion of notes, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

14
15
17
19
18
20

21
22
23
24

25
26
10

27

Annual Report 2011

31 December 2011

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
236,198 —
41,875,122 35,385,957
3,562,519 2,574,217
49,747 —
4,300 4,300
45,727,886 37,964,474
823,961 449,285
1,127,945 891,063
483,330 343,618
49,000 —
3,376,692 1,061,735
5,860,928 2,745,701
1,073,161 913,721
828,385 1,146,208
4,463 78,604
4,573,454 2,423,850
6,479,463 4,562,383
(618,535) (1,816,682)
45,109,351 36,147,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2011

Notes
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Issued capital 34
Reserves 35
Proposed final dividend 12
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other loans 28
Provisions 29
Derivative financial instruments 30
Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 27
Convertible bonds 31
Deferred tax liabilities 32
Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Li Shaode Yan Zhichong
Director Director

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
3,404,552 3,404,552
19,893,810 18,595,219
340,455 578,774
23,638,817 22,578,545
702,791 512,916
24,341,608 23,091,461
515,603 429,934

= 85,500

15,645 13,218
16,754,515 12,122,219
3,110,598 —
371,382 405,460
20,767,743 13,056,331
45,109,351 36,147,792




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 36 1,421,967 2,754,300
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 37,034 14,986
Acquisition of a subsidiary 33 — (49,108)
Investments in associates (8) —
Payments for construction in progress (8,280,555) (7,927,479)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (93,608) (95,057)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale — 87,864
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 205,467 264,650
Loan to a shareholder of a subsidiary (49,000) —
Loan to associates (49,747) —
Dividends received from jointly-controlled entities 58,433 —
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments 1,512 1,343
Investments in jointly-controlled entities (663,000) (742,840)
Net cash outflow used in investing activities (8,833,472) (8,445,641)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (673,355) (363,888)
Dividend paid (578,774) (340,455)
Proceeds from other loans 108,060 —
Net proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 3,912,372 —
New bank loans 11,824,668 7,012,374
Repayment of bank loans (4,988,998) (1,871,627)
Contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 159,995 117,600
Net cash inflow from financing activities 9,763,968 4,554,004
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,352,463 (1,137,337)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,061,735 2,222,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (37,506) (23,075)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 3,376,692 1,061,735
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 3,376,692 1,061,735

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Investments in jointly-controlled entities
Loan receivables

Available-for-sale investments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Bunker oil inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Current portion of notes, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes

14
15
16
19
18
20

21
22
24

25
26
10

27

Annual Report 2011

31 December 2011

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
236,198 —
25,583,658 23,083,032
1,410,676 572,388
2,623,639 1,945,679
424,177 445,840
4,300 4,300
30,282,648 26,051,239
566,702 331,541
848,657 672,540
4,222,238 4,085,301
1,795,817 402,137
7,433,414 5,491,519
810,211 707,657
435,514 617,638

70 74,488
2,974,652 1,467,333
4,220,447 2,867,116
3,212,967 2,624,403
33,495,615 28,675,642
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2011

EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions

Notes, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Convertible bonds

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Li Shaode
Director

2011 2010

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
34 3,404,552 3,404,552
35 18,018,762 16,755,543
12 340,455 578,774
21,763,769 20,738,869

29 = 85,500
27 8,621,248 7,851,273
31 3,110,598 =
11,731,846 7,936,773

33,495,615 28,675,642

Yan Zhichong
Director

The accompanying notes from form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2011

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Shipping Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock company with limited liability
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at 168 Yuan Shen Road, Shanghai, the PRC and 670 Dong Da Ming Road, Shanghai, the
PRC respectively. During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

a) investment holding; and/or
b) oil and cargo shipment along the PRC coast and international shipment; and/or
c) vessel chartering.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding company is China Shipping (Group) Company
(“China Shipping”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

The H-Shares and A-Shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and The Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Group, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2012.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“‘HKASSs”), Interpretations and Accounting Guidelines
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also complied with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. Where certain of assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
consolidated statement of comprehensive income or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instrument: Recognition and
measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefit”
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date;

and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred and the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, the excess is recognised immediately in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on
a transaction by transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous carrying
amount of the associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which venturers have joint
control over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The results and
assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method of accounting, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interest that, if any and in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.

2.5 Bunker oil inventories and ship stores and spare parts

Bunker oil inventories are stated at cost less any impairment losses considered necessary by the directors.
Cost is determined on the weighted average cost method basis.

Ship stores and spare parts are charged as operating expenses when purchased.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, costs transferred from construction in progress, any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use, as well as interest charges relating
to funds borrowed during the periods of construction, installation and testing. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost
of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset or as a
replacement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold improvements 5-10years
Vessels 17 - 22 years (Note)
Machinery and equipment 5-15years

Motor vehicles 5-10years
Buildings 10 - 50 years

Note: Used vessels acquired are depreciated over its estimated remaining useful life.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents the construction or renovation of vessels, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the periods of construction, installation and testing.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use are completed. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time when the relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for land less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The annual rate used for depreciation purpose is 40 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of reporting period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and
certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements. In which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests
in land are accounted for as operating leases.

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group considers whether a contract contains an embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it. The embedded derivates are separated from the host contract which is not measured at fair value
through consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the end of reporting period.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through th